
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764454693  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 
 

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 
 
Date & Time - Tuesday, 9 November 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel: 
 
Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), M D Booth (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, 
T A Carter, A C Cronin, H Drury, J L King, J D McLean, N H Pepper, P A Redgate, 
G P Scalese, A C Tennant, J Tyrrell, S C Walsh and D J Wilkinson 
 
Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only 
from members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual 
meetings only.  
 
Quorum: 5 
 

 

 If you would like to attend this meeting as a 
member of the public, please contact 

Democratic Services via email at 
demservices@sholland.gov.uk or via 

telephone on 01775 764693 

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   1 November 2021 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


A G E N D A 
 
1  Apologies for absence. 

  
 

2  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following meeting: 

• 8 September 2021 
 

(Pages 
5 - 16) 

3  Declaration of Interests. -  
Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation. 
 

 

4  Questions asked under Standing Order 6 
  

 

5  Tracking of Recommendations -  
To consider responses of the Cabinet to reports of the Panel. 
 

 

6  Items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 
  

 

7  Key Decision Plan -  
To note the current Key Decision Plan 
 

(Pages 
17 - 22) 

8  Q2 Performance Report 21/22 -  
To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the period 1 
July 2021 to 30 September 2021 (report of the Assistant Director - 
Corporate and Portfolio Holder Corporate and Communications 
enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
23 - 36) 

9  Refuse Collection From Private Drives Update -  
The Head of Environmental and Operational Services will be in 
attendance to provide a verbal update. 
 

 

10  Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group -  
Update on the current status of recommendations, and an update on all 
the issues raised by the original task group (as requested by PMP 
November 2020).  
 
The Communities Manager will be in attendance to provide a verbal 
update. 
 

 

11  Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group -  
Update to be received on progress of recommendations. 
 
The Communities Manager will be in attendance to provide a verbal 
update. 
 

 

12  Corporate Enforcement Update -  
To provide Members with an update on enforcement activity across the 
Council (report of the Assistant Director Wellbeing & Community 

(Pages 
37 - 46) 

Page 2



Leadership enclosed). 
 

13  Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme -  
To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel 
(report of the Assistant Director – Governance and Monitoring Officer 
enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
47 - 54) 

14  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent -  
 
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 

circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the 
Function Room, South Holland Centre, Market Place, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 
1SS, on Wednesday, 8 September 2021 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
  

M D Booth (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

J R Astill 
C J T H Brewis 
T A Carter 
A C Cronin 
 

J D McLean 
N H Pepper 
P A Redgate 
G P Scalese 
 

J Tyrrell 
S C Walsh 
A M Newton 
 

  
 
In Attendance:  The Assistant Director Communities and Operations, the Assistant 
Director Strategic Growth, the Assistant Director Property and Delivery, the Head of 
Delivery, the Economic Development and Inward Investment Manager, the Senior 
Change and Performance Business Partner and the Democratic Services Team 
Leader. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors B Alcock, 
J L King, A C Tennant and D J Wilkinson  
 
 
 Action By 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

  

 Notification had been received that Councillor A M Newton was 
replacing Councillor B Alcock for this meeting only.  

 

   

2 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL   

  

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the Performance 
Monitoring Panel held on 18 March 2021. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the minutes be signed as a correct record.  

 

   

3 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT PANEL  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the Joint Performance 
Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 29 June 
2021. 
 
AGREED: 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



- 2 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
September 2021 

 

 

That the minutes be signed as a correct record.  
   

4 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT PANEL  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the Joint Performance 
Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 22 July 
2021. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the minutes be signed as a correct record.  

 

   

5 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   

  

 Councillor Carter did not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
but in the interests of transparency, declared that in relation to 
agenda item 10, she was the owner of a storage business.  

 

   

6 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6   

  

 There were none.   

   

7 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS   

  

 There were none.   

   

8 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL.  

 

  

 There were none.   

   

9 KEY DECISION PLAN   

  

 Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 19 
August 2021, and the following points were raised. 
 

• Members questioned whether the purpose of the property 
acquisitions to support Housing Options service delivery was 
to house homeless people 

o Officers confirmed that this was the case.  
 

• Members enquired about a property which had already been 
acquired, and was due to be ready at the end of June. The 
work on the property had been more extensive than ward 
members had been advised, and work was not yet finalised. 
Members asked whether a survey had taken place after 
completion of the property and asked whether due diligence 

 

Page 6



- 3 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
September 2021 

 

 

had been conducted. Members wanted to prevent the same 
situation occurring in the future.  

o The officer confirmed that due diligence had taken 
place. A thorough inspection had been carried out when 
vacant possession had been obtained. The officer 
confirmed the additional work that was required, that 
the purchase decision had been made by the Portfolio 
Holder, and that the decision had  been through the 
scrutiny process.  
 

• Members asked when the property would be on stream 
o The officer confirmed this would be October 2021. The 

completion of works had been delayed due to reduced 
availability and increased costs of supplies, and a 
national shortage of labour had been seen in the 
construction industry.  

 

• Members were disappointed that a surveyor had not been 
instructed.  

o Officers confirmed that a range of surveys, including 
structural surveys were completed prior to purchase as 
required.  

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Key Decision Plan issued on 19 August 2021 be noted.  

   

10 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT/INWARD INVESTMENT UPDATE   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Acting Executive 
Director, which provided an update to the Panel on current work 
being undertaken to support the South Holland economy. 
 
The Inward Investment Manager gave an update on this item, and 
the following points were covered: 
 

• The team had continued to concentrate on the delivery of the 
Government’s Covid-19 business grants (the Local 
Restrictions Support Grants, the Open but Impacted 
discretionary grant programme and the Restart Grant).  The 
schemes had drawn to a close, and a total of 5544 payments 
totalling £30,519,323 had been distributed to South Holland 
businesses since the start of the first lockdown in March. 

• In November 2020, SHDC was allocated £2,774,439 in 
Additional Restrictions Grant Funding.  The report detailed 
how the authority had used the money to support businesses. 

• As restrictions eased, face to face visits with businesses had 
resumed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



- 4 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
September 2021 

 

 

• Construction on the first of the University buildings on the 
Food Enterprise Zone (FEZ) in Holbeach was now complete 
and had officially been handed over to the University, 
Construction on the second had begun, to be followed by a 
third building.  Interest levels in sites remained high. 

• Inward investment activity had been centred mostly around the 
FEZ.  All plots on Phase 1 were already reserved or under 
offer, there was considerable interest in Phase 2 and there 
were already enquiries for office space in the hub building. 

• The ERDF funded Grants4growth programme had continued 
to perform throughout the pandemic period and was on track 
to deliver all of its contracted outputs on time and within 
budget.  It was still awaiting go-ahead for a further year’s 
extension. 

• The Inward Investment Team were taking an active role in the 
business and economy element of the Spalding town centre 
work, and were also engaging with the Town Centre Steering 
Group and the Economy and Skills subgroup. 

 
Members considered the information, and the following issues 
were raised: 
 

• Members asked whether any businesses that had received 
grant funding, had subsequently closed. 

o Officers were not aware of any and stated that 
despite the pandemic, reports had indicated that the 
South Holland economy had done well.  

 

• It was confirmed that although there had been some 
movement on numbers of people claiming Universal Credit, 
the change was not significant. 

 

• Members thanked the officers for the administration of grants 
and acknowledged they had been a lifeline for many 
businesses. 

 

• Regarding the online job fair, members enquired whether data 
existed that gave information on job vacancies and the 
number of job seekers. Members also asked which schools 
had engaged with the Enterprise Advisor Network. 

o Officers did not have this information to hand, and 
advised that they would circulate the information to 
members. 

 

• Members asked about businesses that had been identified for 
the agri-food sector bid. 

o Officers confirmed this was a package of funding 
from central government that businesses would be 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NB  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



- 5 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
September 2021 

 

 

able to bid into as and when the funding was 
approved. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted.  

 
 
 
NB  

   

11 DWP   

  

 A presentation was given to the Panel by the Partnership 
Manager for the Department for Work and Pensions, which 
included details on the scope of Universal Credit and current 
projects. 
 
The Universal Credit presentation included information and data 
regarding: 
 

• Employment Rate; 

• Moving Disabled People into Work; 

• Black Minority Ethnic (BME) employment rates; 

• Older Workers; 

• Gender gap employment rate; 

• Universal Credit claimants; 

• New style Jobseekers Allowance; 

• Youth Unemployment.  
 
The following projects were discussed: 
 

• A redundancy toolkit had been created which combined 
support available to businesses and employees who faced 
potential redundancy. This had been created by a partnership 
of agencies led by the Chamber of Commerce Federation of 
Small Businesses. DWP received indicators through the 
insolvency service regarding likelihood of redundancies of 
more than 20 employees. None had been received in the last 
3 months throughout Lincolnshire.  

• The Kick Start scheme was a significant response to Youth 
Unemployment which was still available to young people and 
businesses. Most had been developmental roles. Applications 
could still be accommodated. 

• The Restart Programme engaged people who had been 
unemployed for at least 12 months.  

• Short Intervention Training Programme fulfilled specific 
employer needs and enhanced employability of potential 
applicants through the utilisation of short certification. Funding 
from this scheme accommodated opportunities. 

• The local DWP was involved in a pilot scheme which related to 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



- 6 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
September 2021 

 

 

LGV shortages. Full assessment had not yet been published 
but indicators recommended the utilisation of funding streams; 
and identified pathways for return to the sector such as funded 
certifications. Frustrations had existed from process delays 
caused by Covid. 

• On-line jobs fairs had been effective during the Covid period. 
 
Members thanked the Partnership Manager for the DWP for 
attending and made the following comments: 
 

• Members requested contact details for the Partnership 
Manager in case of future queries, and it was confirmed the 
these could be provided. 

 

• Members requested reassurance that all people, including 
those who lived on the outskirts of the district who needed to 
look for work outside of district boundaries(such as 
Peterborough, Wisbech and Kings Lynn) were supported. The 
issue of inadequate public transport into Spalding was also 
highlighted.  

o The Partnership Manager DWP confirmed that support 
was not limited by boundaries. All opportunities would 
be considered. DWP obtained and presented 
comprehensive details from employers which enabled 
customers to make informed choices, including 
regarding commute.  

o Where there had been staff shortages, wider 
opportunities were experienced where employers had 
increased flexibilities regarding shift patterns and 
transport provision.  

o Online recruitment driven by employment agencies, 
direct adverts and social media, had assisted in 
providing wider access to opportunities which were not 
limited by physical boundaries. Those with the capacity 
to travel widely were being facilitated. 

 

• Members expressed the need for opportunities across the 
whole district, not just in Spalding. Concerns were raised 
about long commutes and the related carbon footprint impact. 
Shorter journey times were preferred. 

o The Partnership Manager DWP confirmed that DWP 
were receptive and available to all and would relay all 
offers that employers made whilst practicing due 
diligence around exploitation and coercion risks. 

 
The Chairman thanked the Partnership Manager for the DWP for 
his presentation.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NB  

   

Page 10



- 7 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
September 2021 

 

 

12 MARKETING/RENOVATION OF INDUSTRIAL UNITS   

  

 The Panel received a presentation from the Assistant Director, 
Property and Delivery on the current situation regarding the 
current occupancy levels, future marketing, new lettings and 
maintenance works on industrial units.  The following information 
was provided: 
 

• The officer stated that various presentations and reports 
relating to the replacement Letting Policy, and the marketing 
and maintenance of units, had been provided to both the 
Policy Development Panel and Performance Monitoring Panel 
during the summer of 2020  

• a new Lettings Policy was approved in September 2020 and 
was now being implemented through the granting of new 
leases to existing and any new tenants; 

• examples of repairs and improvement works undertaken and 
planned; 

• that of the 50 units in SHDC’s Industrial Estates, 49 were 
currently let with the final unit under offer and with solicitors; 

• opportunities existed for increasing the portfolio of industrial 
units under ownership and management, if the full business 
case was approved, to build new units at Crease Drove in 
Crowland.  There could be opportunities to build units there for 
start-up as well as expanding businesses including the 
possibility of subdivision of units for small businesses on a 
serviced space basis, a suggestion made at a previous 
Performance Monitoring Panel meeting; 

• organisational changes, namely bringing all asset matters 
under a single Directorate and recruitment to a key post in the 
team as well as the new Lettings Policy, had added additional 
capacity, commercial approach and expertise to support the 
effective management of the industrial estates. 

 
Members thanked officers for the presentation and made the 
following comments: 
 

• Members were grateful for the improvements made to the 
Railway Lane site which would be attractive to potential 
tenants.  
 

• Members questioned whether a risk existed regarding 
delivering the Crease Drove expansion which had been 
paused when the pandemic started (March 2020) due to the 
possibility of build cost increase; and whether the budget 
needed to be reviewed as a consequence. 

o Officers confirmed that the tender process would now 
recommence and officers would assess the tender 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



- 8 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
September 2021 

 

 

prices when they were returned.  The build cost and 
anticipated rents achievable based on an assessment 
of market interest were two key ingredients to 
progressing the business case and both activities would 
now commence.  Capital funding had already been set 
aside for 22/23 to support this project but the exact 
figure required would not be known until tenders had 
been returned and evaluated. 
 

• Members asked whether progress had been made on 
discussions regarding compounds at Railway Lane. 

o The Officers confirmed that the site was suitable for a 
container and/or yard based storage and all 
suggestions were welcomed. The market needed to be 
tested for feedback for 2022. 
 

• Members had noticed a number of vehicles parking on the 
roadside in the Railway Lane area and asked whether there 
were opportunities to create some additional formal parking on 
the site.  

o The officer responded that this would be investigated, 
and all comments were welcomed. 
 

The Chairman thanked the Assistant Director, Property and 
Delivery for the presentation.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RH  

   

13 Q4 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT 20/21   

  

 The Senior Change and Performance Partner advised the Panel 
that, although the Q4 20/21 and Q1 21/22 Performance Overview 
reports were included for information, he would concentrate on 
presentation of the Q1 report as this provided more up to date 
information.  

 

   

14 Q1 21/22 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
for Growth, which provided an update on how the Council was 
performing for the period 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021. 
 
The Quarter 1 2021-22 Performance Report detailed in Appendix 
A aimed to provide members, businesses, and residents with an 
overview of how the Council was performing against a number of 
key strategic indicators in an ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The 
reported indicators provided an indication of performance and 
business intelligence as compared to the previous year to 
highlight how key services had performed whilst the organisation 
had continued to respond to the challenges and pressures that 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



- 9 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
September 2021 

 

 

the pandemic had presented to both the organisation and the 
district as a whole. 
 
As highlighted previously the report did not contain a suite of 
performance indicators to the same scale and breadth as 
presented to the Panel in previous years. This was because, in 
many cases, the focus of many council services and their 
attendant resources had shifted away from pre-March 2020 
‘business as usual activity’, and was instead now focused on a 
different range of areas directly aligned to supporting the council 
with its pandemic response and recovery. 
 
Consequently, the report sought to provide a summary of 
performance in key areas which reflected the current performance 
of the council in a number of critical areas, whilst the organisation 
remained focused on supporting its communities, residents and 
local business in extra-ordinary times. The narrative within the 
report provided supplementary commentary to support the data.  
 
Members considered both the Q4 20/21 report and the Q1 21/22 
report and made the following comments: 
 

• Members queried the reference to adverse weather conditions 
which had affected waste collections (Q4 report, section 2.4 of 
the report). Members could not recall such challenging 
weather conditions. 

o The officer would investigate this point and provide 
members with clarification 
. 

• Members welcomed Q4 data regarding increased emails 
(detailed in section 2.2 of the report) and the explanation 
relating to the reduced bounce from the website (detailed 
under the Customer/Digital section of Appendix A).  

 

• Members considered the narrative and response regarding 
Freedom of Information (Appendix A) as poor. Data needed to 
be managed when it was first received rather than revisited 
later. This issue was apparent from the narrative in the Q1 
report so why had this not improved?  

o Officers accepted the point raised regarding Freedom 
of Information but advised that GDPR permissions 
would have to be confirmed before this could be 
shared. 
 

• Members asked for more information regarding complaints 
received. The report stated there had been an increase in the 
number of complaints dealt with (Appendix A) but a statement 
demonstrating an understanding of root causes or trends had 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  
 
 

Page 13



- 10 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
September 2021 

 

 

not been included. 
o Officers confirmed that a breakdown of complaint 

data was held and would be shared. 
 

• Members requested the increase in void days from Q4 at 2190 
compared to 1600 one year ago be investigated. Members 
stated that work on kitchens and bathrooms in empty houses 
should cease and be prioritised for inhabited homes instead. 

o The officer agreed to investigate this point with the 
Assistant Director Housing so that feedback regarding 
the narrative could be provided. 

 

• Members asked for clarification regarding Business rate relief 
(Appendix A, Business rate collection rate) as the narrative 
had changed from Q4 to Q1. 

o The officer agreed that he would investigate this item. 
 

• Covid Business related enquiries (Appendix A, Public 
Protection) had increased as expected but the narrative was 
missing which could have highlighted trends and therefore 
informed actions.  

o The officer advised that he would investigate the 
missing narrative. 

 

• Officers reported they were pleased that fly tipping had 
improved.  

• In connection with fly tipping, Members noted that the report 
did not include reference to tipper trucks. Criticism had been 
received on social media regarding fly tipping and how this 
had been dealt with. Members were aware that work had been 
done and advised communications to the press would be 
worthwhile regarding completed work. Enforcement data was 
also requested. 

o Officers confirmed that a report on enforcement would 
be presented at the next PMP meeting. There had been 
challenges in this area but progress had been made 
which would be detailed in the report. 

 
AGREED 
 
That both the Q4 Performance Overview Report 20/21 and the Q1 
21/22 Performance Overview reports be noted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  
 
 
 
 
 
CG  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EH  

   

15 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 
Governance which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel. The Work Programme consisted 

 

Page 14



- 11 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
September 2021 

 

 

of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the 
future panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel. 
 
Members were advised that, following a discussion at Full Council 
on 29 July 2021, it had been agreed that a Task Group be set up 
to look at the current and future operations of the South Holland 
Centre. Scrutiny Chairmen had agreed that the Task Group would 
be joint, with members being sought from both the Performance 
Monitoring Panel and the Policy Development Panel.  Members 
had been requested to express their interest in joining the Task 
Group, and nine members had come forward (Councillors Alcock, 
Biggadike, Booth, Carter, Cronin, Redgate, Walsh, Wilkinson and 
Woolf, with Councillor Newton as co-optee). The Panel felt that a 
membership of nine would be too large for a workable group, and 
that five members would be appropriate.   Councillors Carter and 
Booth withdrew leaving seven members. It was agreed that the 
Chairmen of both Panels would consider the members who 
wished to be involved and make the final decision of how the five 
would be selected, and that the final membership would then be 
confirmed at the meeting of the Policy Development Panel on 21 
September 2021. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted.  

   

16 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT  

 

  

 There were none.   

   

 
(The meeting ended at 8.00 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 

 

    

KEY DECISION PLAN 
 

Issued – 1 November 2021 

  

 

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to:  

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.   
 
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.” 
 
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies) 
 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
2 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Proposed Sale of 
Former Depot 
Site at Fleet 
Road Holbeach 
 

Report setting out recommendations 
relating to the proposed disposal by 
private treaty of this former depot site 
in Holbeach. 

 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader 
 
Not before 9th Nov 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
SHDC Land 
Sites Project 
 

To appoint a consultant to provide 
Employer's Agent Services to progress 
a number of land assets owned by 
SHDC to explore the potential to 
provide housing for the district.  

 

 
 
 
 

 Assistant Director - 
Strategic Growth and 
Development, or any other 
officer with delegation 
 
Not before 24th Nov 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
SHDC Land 
Sites Project 
 

To appoint a consultant to provide 
Architectural Services to progress a 
number of land assets owned by 
SHDC, to explore the potential to 
provide housing for the district. 
 

 
 
 
 

 Assistant Director - 
Strategic Projects, or any 
other officer with 
delegation 
 
Not before 24th Nov 2021 
 

P
age 18



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
3 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Acquisition 
project to 
purchase s106 
rented units 
 

To seek approval to commit capital to 
purchase s106 rented dwellings. 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 14 Dec 2021, or 
Leader 
 
South Holland District 
Council 19 Jan 2022 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Public 
Protection 
 
Corporate 
Enforcement 
Policy 
 

To seek feedback on the revised 
corporate enforcement policy prior to 
seeking Cabinet approval 
 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 14 Dec 2021, or 
Leader 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Communities 
& Facilities 
 
Implications from 
Covid-19 on the 
leisure operating 
contract 
 

To assess the impact of Covid-19 on 
the leisure operating contract 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 14 Dec 2021, or 
Leader 
 
South Holland District 
Council 19 Jan 2022 
 

P
age 19



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
4 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
 
Fire door and 
Compliance 
contract 
 

Fire door replacement and associated 
fire compliance works to sheltered 
schemes 
 

 
 
 
 

 Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation 
  
Before 31 Dec 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (A) 
 

Acquisition of a second hand property. 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Jan 2022 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (E) 
 

Acquisition of property 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Jan 2022 
 

P
age 20



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
5 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (F) 
 

Acquisition of property 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Jan 2022 
 

 
 
 

*Cabinet Membership 

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader) 
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor P E Coupland (Deputy Leader) 
Councillor J Astill (Portfolio Holder 
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Grocock (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor E J Sneath (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder) 
 
 

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

P
age 21

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


 
6 

 

 

P
age 22



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Assistant Director – Corporate and Portfolio Holder Corporate and 

Communications, Cllr Jim Astill 

  

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 9 November 2021 

 Cabinet – 14 December 2021 

 

(Author: Corey Gooch, Senior Change, Improvement and Performance Business  

  Partner 

 

Subject Q2 Performance Report 21/22 

 

Purpose: To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the period 1 July 

2021 to 30 September 2021 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Performance Monitoring Panel note the contents of the report. 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The report seeks to provide Performance Monitoring Panel with an overview of a number of 

 key performance indicators for the council. The report concerns the period of Quarter 2 

 2021-22 (July 2021 until September 2021). 

 

1.2 The Quarter 2 2021-22 Performance Report detailed in Appendix A aims to provide 

 members, businesses and residents with an overview of how the Council is performing 

 against a number of key strategic indicators in an ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The 

 reported indicators will provide an indication of performance and business intelligence as 

 compared to the previous year to highlight how key services have performed whilst the 

 organisation has continued to respond to the challenges and pressures that the pandemic 

 has presented to both the organisation and the district as a whole. 

 

1.3 Members will note a slightly revised layout of the report, however there are no key changes 

 to content or information provided, there is only the addition of trend charts for each metric 

 to provide a visual aid 

 

1.4 Consequently, the report seeks to provide a summary of performance in key areas which 

reflect the current performance of the council in a number of critical areas, whilst the 

organisation remains focused on supporting its communities, residents and local business 

in extra-ordinary times. The narrative within the report seeks to provide supplementary 

commentary to support the data 

 

2.0 KEY PERFORMANCE AND BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE POINTS 

 

2.1  Appendix A details certain areas of underperformance within the customer contact centre 

team, a key metrics being % of calls answered which has continued to fall into Q2 and now 

sits at 79%. For comparison there were 22,343 calls received in Quarter 2 of this year 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



compared to 19,535 for Q2 last year. Call duration and the average time to answer calls 

also increased during this period and is document within appendix A of this report. The 

team continue to see resourcing challenges through exceptionally high levels of attrition 

and have instigated a short-term recovery plan through targeted recruitment, focused 

available resourcing hours on the phone, additionally the team have refreshed a targeted 

approach to their training strategy. Improvements are starting to be seen, through this 

approach, seeing average speed of answer reduce during recent weeks. Activities such as 

recruitment and training to the multiple vacancies should also result in improved 

performance and the Head of Customer Contact will be in attendance at the meeting to 

discuss and take any questions on this area. 

 

2.2  Time to respond to FOIs and Complaints has improved, both of these areas are performing 

at the highest levels in the last 4 quarters and are sitting just over 90%, this is as a result of 

positive work from the FOI officer and a result of revised processes such as effective 

triaging of items before they are logged in the feedback management system, saving time 

spent by services and reducing repeated requests. 

 

2.3  Despite high levels of fly-tipping across the national picture we have seen the number of 

working days to collect fly-tips reduce to just over 3 days on average, this is positive to note 

and the best we have seen this figure for which the target sits at 5 days or less. 

 

 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

3.1 That the contents of this report be noted. 

 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

4.1 That the Council’s performance is properly scrutinised. 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

5.1 Constitutional & Legal 

 

5.1.1 The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring Panel. 

 

5.2 Crime and Disorder 

 

5.2.1 The report contains indicators which does convey some information relating to crime and 

disorder. 

 

5.3 Financial 

 

Page 24



5.3.1 The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 

information relating to financial matters. 

 

5.4 Health & Wellbeing 

 

5.4.1 The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 

information relating to health and wellbeing. 

 

5.5 Reputation 

 

5.5.1 Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence.  It is the purpose of this 

report to highlight performance issues at an early stage. 

 

5.6 Risk Management 

 

5.6.1 Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect Council 

interests. 

 

5.7 Staffing 

 

5.7.1 The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 

information relating to staffing. 

 

5.8 Corporate Priorities 

 

5.8.1 The report presents progress monitoring of key performance indicators from the corporate 

priorities which highlight the areas of focus in the new BAU Covid era. 

 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

6.1 No Wards or Communities are affected. 

 

7.0 ACRONYMS 

 

PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Ltd 

LCC – Lincolnshire County Council 

CTS – Council Tax Support 

ICO – Information Commissioner’s Office 

LGO – Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

 

 

Background papers:-  

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Corey Gooch, Senior Change and Performance Partner 

Telephone Number: 07766510458 

Email: corey.gooch@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

 

Appendix A Q2 21/22 Performance Report 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

2021/22 Q2 SHDC PMP Report 
 

 
 

 
 

`  Current Quarter   

Short Name Description Q2 2021/22 Trend Chart Latest Note 

Value Target Status Value vs 

Target 

Value vs 

Previous 

Time to process DFG 

Applications 

Overall time from appointment 

to completion.  

256 Data Only 
 

N/A 34.1 

 

No issues to note around 

DFG Applications and 

processing times. 

% of complaints 

responded to within 

agreed timescales 

the percentage of the 

complaints that were 

responded to within the period, 

that were responded to within 

the agreed timescales (15 day 

stage 1, 20 days stage 2) 

92.11% 80% 
 

12.11% 9.61% 

 

Breakdown of complaints 

for recent quarters will be 

circulated separately to this 

report. 

 

P
age 27



2 

`  Current Quarter   

Short Name Description Q2 2021/22 Trend Chart Latest Note 

Value Target Status Value vs 

Target 

Value vs 

Previous 

% of FOI requests 

responded to within 

time limit 

Of the FOI's responded to in 

the month, the percentage of 

ones that were responded to 

within the statutory 20 day 

timescale 

90% 100% 
 

-10% 6% 

 

Performance in this area 

has improved by 6% from 

the previous quarter but 

still slightly below target, 

where an FOI is going to 

take longer than 20 

working days the FOI 

officer will work to notify 

the requestor of a delay. 

# of FOI requests 

received 

Number of FOI requests 

received in reporting period 

106 Data Only 
 

N/A 24 

 

A significant increase since 

the previous quarter but no 

particular trends to note at 

this point. 

Number of 

complaints received 

The total number of formal 

complaints received within the 

period 

38 Data Only 
 

N/A -1 

 

Slight reduction in the 

number of complaints 

coming in, work is 

underway to triage 

complaints and separate 

“Formal complaints” and 

“Service issues/queries” so 

we expect to see this 

number reduce in coming 

quarters 

P
age 28



3 

`  Current Quarter   

Short Name Description Q2 2021/22 Trend Chart Latest Note 

Value Target Status Value vs 

Target 

Value vs 

Previous 

Engagement on Social 

Media (Impressions) 

Number of impacts on social 

media (seen by / shared / 

retweets of retweets etc)   

761,444 Data Only 
 

N/A -98,980 

 

No significant changes to 

note for social media 

engagement, downward 

trend is seasonal and we 

tend to pick up again in 

Q3. 

% of CSs Calls 

Answered 

% of SHDC calls that are 

answered by an appropriate 

member of staff from the total 

of calls offered. 

  

This indicator reflects calls 

dealt with by generic Customer 

Contact only and does not 

include those dealt with by 

Revenues and Benefits skilled 

staff. 

79.63% 91% 
 

-11.37% -3.44% 

 

18.67% short of in-month 

target. 7834 calls received 

vs 7942 September 20 (-

98). Call duration increased 

364 vs 325 (+39s) and 

average speed of answer 

during September was 271 

seconds vs 161 seconds in 

20. We continue to see 

resourcing challenges 

through exceptionally high 

levels of attrition. 

% of CC Calls 

Answered within 120 

seconds 

The time a first connection is 

established (after the IVR 

message and option/extension 

has been entered) to the time 

that the call is answered. The 

measure will be the number of 

calls answered within the 

64.48% Data Only 
 

N/A -3.44% 

 

35.23% short of in-month 

target. 7834 calls received 

vs 7942 September 20 (-

98). Call duration increased 

364 vs 325 (+39s). . and 

average speed of answer 

during September is 271 

P
age 29



4 

`  Current Quarter   

Short Name Description Q2 2021/22 Trend Chart Latest Note 

Value Target Status Value vs 

Target 

Value vs 

Previous 

standard defined (120 

seconds), divided by the total 

number of calls answered   

seconds vs 161 seconds in 

20. 

Call duration - CC Average duration of calls. 

  

References calls received and 

dealt with by generic Customer 

Contact only. It does not 

include calls taken by Revenues 

and Benefits trained officers. 

0h 06m 

01s 

Data Only 
 

N/A -0h 00m 

03s 

 

No significant changes to 

note around call duration 

other than a slight increase 

since last quarter 

Number of Working 

Days to Deal with Fly 

Tipping 

 Speed of response in working 

days to clear fly-tipping 

3.85 5 
 

-1.15 -1.89 

 

This figure is performing 

consistently well despite 

Fly tipping in the district 

remaining persistently high 

throughout Q2.  High 

levels of fly-tipping reflect 

the national picture. 

Average Number of 

working days to 

collect missed waste 

Average speed of response 

(from reported to collected) 

1 Data Only 
 

N/A 0 

 

Despite issues faced with 

HGV Driver shortages it is 

pleasing to note missed 

collections are being dealt 

with at around 1 day 

average. 

Q2 has seen a slight 

increase in the number of 

missed collections across 

P
age 30



5 

`  Current Quarter   

Short Name Description Q2 2021/22 Trend Chart Latest Note 

Value Target Status Value vs 

Target 

Value vs 

Previous 

missed collection services 

from Q1.  The total number 

of missed collections for 

Q2 represents 0.19% of the 

total number of collections 

throughout the district, 

and remains below our 

target of 3%. 

The service has examined 

its internal reporting 

processes resulting in a a 

new coding procedure.  

The aim is to provide an 

informed analysis of 

missed collections, and 

impact on service.  The 

endeavour is to identify all 

types of failure and plan 

for improvements. 

Missed Waste 

Collection Rate 

% of missed collections 0.19% 3% 
 

-2.81% 0.04% 

 

KPI is on target with no 

issues to raise.  Further to 

the above the service 

continues to analyse its 

position for further 

improvement by evaluating 

complaints and customer 

feedback.  

P
age 31



6 

`  Current Quarter   

Short Name Description Q2 2021/22 Trend Chart Latest Note 

Value Target Status Value vs 

Target 

Value vs 

Previous 

Food Businesses 

Rated 'Generally 

Satisfactory' or Above 

The % of rateable food 

businesses with a rating of 3 

(generally satisfactory), 4 

(good) or 5 (very good) as a % 

of the total number of rateable 

businesses 

99.66% 98% 
 

1.66% 0.67% 

 

KPI continues on target 

with no issues or concerns  

to raise 

Staff turnover % % of total leavers against total 

number of staff employed in 

period (includes involuntary 

leavers)  

  

Target is 10% which has been 

benchmarked  

2.56% 1.4% 
 

1.16% 1.04% 

 

6 leavers against a starting 

headcount of 243 

# of Working Days 

Lost to Sickness per 

FTE 

Total number of working days 

lost per Full Time Equivalent. 

This is calculated by taking the 

number of days lost to sickness 

and dividing it by the number 

of full time equivalent staff in 

the period 

0.69 Data Only 
 

N/A 0.02 

 

Slight increase from 

previous quarter but not 

sickness trends or 

concerns to highlight from 

HR 

P
age 32



7 

`  Current Quarter   

Short Name Description Q2 2021/22 Trend Chart Latest Note 

Value Target Status Value vs 

Target 

Value vs 

Previous 

Housing re-let (void) 

time (total ave. key to 

key) All Tenures 

Total time in days from keys in 

to keys out - including major 

works for all tenures (General 

Needs and Sheltered Housing)  

This is calculated by total 

number of days properties 

remain vacant divided by the 

number or properties vacant in 

the period  

24 days 28 days 
 

-4 days -1 days 

 

KPI is on target with no 

issues to raise 

Cases Prevented from 

Homelessness 

P1E Return - Prevention and 

Relieving of Homelessness 

Number of potentially 

homeless cases diverted from 

homelessness in the District 

15 Data Only 
 

N/A +8 

 

The on-going resources 

challenge continues to 

impact on the level of 

prevention activities the 

Housing Options service 

can deliver. Existing and 

temporary resources are 

focussed on responding to 

current cases and 

presenting emergency 

demand. An emergency 

action plan has been 

deployed to ensure service 

recovery. The increase in 

prevention cases from the 

previous quarter 

demonstrates that the 

interim measures are 

P
age 33



8 

`  Current Quarter   

Short Name Description Q2 2021/22 Trend Chart Latest Note 

Value Target Status Value vs 

Target 

Value vs 

Previous 

having the expected 

impact. The Housing 

Options Team will be 

reshaped through pending 

recruitment to develop a 

team which has a greater 

focus on prevention 

Businesses Assisted 

to Develop or Grow 

via Grants4Growth 

Number of existing businesses 

assisted to develop or grow 

through Economic 

Development support - Grants 

for Growth  

41 6 
 

35 -3 

 

KPI is on target with no 

issues to raise 

Number of Grants 

Awarded via 

Grants4Growth 

Total number of grants that are 

awarded - grants for growth 

15 13 
 

2 -7 

 

KPI is on target with no 

issues to raise 

P
age 34



9 

`  Current Quarter   

Short Name Description Q2 2021/22 Trend Chart Latest Note 

Value Target Status Value vs 

Target 

Value vs 

Previous 

% of non-major 

applications 

determined within 8 

weeks or agreed 

extension 

This PI measures the % of non-

major applications that have 

been determined within 8 

weeks or agreed extension, this 

is in line with national 

requirements. 

83.85% 70% 
 

13.85% -16.15% 

 

Reflects nature of the 

applications determined.  

Number over time due to 

officer workloads and 

situations where applicants 

would not agree to 

extensions of time. 

% of Major 

applications 

determined within 13 

weeks or agreed 

extension 

% determined within 13 weeks 

(or with agreed extension or 

PPA)  

89.47% 60% 
 

29.47% -10.53% 

 

Major applications often 

raise more complex issues, 

are often reported to the 

planning Committee and 

many require S106 

agreements.  hence 

importance of working 

proactively with developers 

to agree extensions of time 

where appropriate. 

Housing Benefit LA 

Error Rate 

Local Authority error in 

Housing Benefit overpayment  

Amount of benefits overpaid 

divided by benefits paid (% of 

overall expenditure)  

0.24% 0.42% 
 

-0.18% -0.1% 

 

We remain on target to 

receive 100% subsidy 

P
age 35



10 

`  Current Quarter   

Short Name Description Q2 2021/22 Trend Chart Latest Note 

Value Target Status Value vs 

Target 

Value vs 

Previous 

Business Rate In Year 

Collection Rate 

Amount of Business Rates 

collected in the year against 

the total collectable debit  

51.82% 50% 
 

1.82% 22.33% 

 

The annual collectable 

debit increased by 13.24% 

(£2.86m) in July.  Much of 

this increase is due a 

change to the Government 

funded Retail Discount 

Relief Scheme which was 

reduced from 100% to 66% 

relief (for those qualifying 

businesses) from 1 July 

2021.  These Retail 

Businesses were rebilled 

during July with their 

revised liabilities payable 

between August and the 

end of the financial year.   

  

Council Tax In Year 

Collection Rate 

Amount of Council Tax 

collected in the year against 

the total collectable debit  

56.64% 50% 
 

6.64% 27.12% 

 

KPI is on target with no 

issues to raise 

 
  

P
age 36



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Emily Spicer, Assistant Director Wellbeing & Community Leadership 

  

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Tuesday 9th November 2021   

 

(Author: Emily Holmes, Communities Manager) 

 

Subject Corporate Enforcement Update 

 

Purpose: To provide Members with an update on enforcement activity across the 

Council 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That the content of the report be noted 

 
2) That the data within this report is provided on a quarterly basis to Members as part of the 

Performance report going forward for more regular updates 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The Council is responsible for enforcing a wide range of legislation, with powers of 

enforcement usually delegated to individual officers in the various service areas concerned.  

 

1.2 Enforcement activity in the Council is extensive and includes planning enforcement, 

contraventions of building regulations, littering, fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour, abandoned 

vehicles, evictions, possessions, prohibitions orders, food safety, health and safety, 

licensing, noise nuisance and pollution. The activity covers individuals, public areas, 

vehicles, homes and businesses. 

 

1.3 All departments dealing with enforcement do so in line with the Corporate Enforcement 
Policy approved on 29th May 2018. The policy is currently being updated and is due to be 
considered at the next meeting of the Policy Development Panel in November. All services 
adopt an incremental approach to enforcement; starting with compliance, advice or 
warnings and progressing to other enforcement activity where proportionate and 
appropriate. 

 

2.0  ENFORCEMENT DATA 

2.1  Performance indicators (PI’s) for enforcement commenced in April 2019, requiring all teams 

across the authority with enforcement responsibilities to report on their enforcement on a 

quarterly basis.  

2.2  The table below summarises the total enforcement activity recorded during 2020/21.  

 

 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 12



Table showing enforcement activity for 2020/21 

Service  No. 
informal 
notices/ 
warning 
letters 

No. voluntary 
undertakings 

No. 
Statutory 
notices 

No. 
financial 
penalties 

No. Injunctive 
Actions, 
Enforcement 
Orders etc 

No.  
Simple 
Cautions 

No. 
Prosecutions 

Environmental 
Protection 

18 0 2 0 0 0 0 

Licensing* 
 

6 0 N/A N/A N/A 0 0 

Food, Health 
and Safety – 
non covid 

21 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 

Communities 
 

1,170 1 4 81 1 N/A 0 

Planning 
 

N/A N/A 13 N/A 0 N/A 2 

Housing- 
 

20 0 4 3 5 0 2 

Building 
Control 
 

0 146 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTALS 
 

1,235 147 23 84 6 0 4 

 

*N/A: service area is not legislated to use the enforcement action 

 

2.3  The table below summarises enforcement activity for Quarter 1, 2021/22 

Service  No. 

informal 

notices/ 

warning 

letters 

No. 

voluntary 

undertakings 

No. 

Statutory 

notices 

No. 

financial 

penalties 

No. 

Injunctive 

Actions, 

Enforcement 

Orders etc 

No.  

Simple 

Cautions 

No. 

Prosecutions 

Environmental 

Protection 
4 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Licensing* 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Food, Health 

and Safety – 

non covid 

29 0 6 0 0 0 0 

Communities 351 0 0 45 0 N/A 0 

Planning N/A N/A 4 N/A 0 N/A 0 

Page 38



Housing- 2 0 1 1 0 0 0 

Building 

Control 
0 92 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTALS 387 92 11 46 0 0 0 

 

 

2.4 The table below summarises enforcement activity for Quarter 2, 2021/22:  

Service  No. 

informal 

notices/ 

warning 

letters 

No. 

voluntary 

undertakings 

No. 

Statutory 

notices 

No. 

financial 

penalties 

No. 

Injunctive 

Actions, 

Enforcement 

Orders etc 

No.   

Simple 

Cautions 

No. 

Prosecutions 

Environmental 

Protection 
8 0 3 0 0 0 0 

Licensing* 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Food, Health 

and Safety – 

non covid 

87 0 1 0 0 0 0 

Communities 572 0 0 21 0 N/A 0 

Planning 0 N/A 4 N/A 0 0 0 

Housing 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 

Building 

Control 
0 160 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTALS 671 160 9  0 0 0 

 

 

Key areas of note provided by service areas are: 

2.5 Environmental Protection  

The number of warnings issued are generally similar to numbers in the same quarter the 

year before. Environmental Protection complaints and enforcement trends tend to be 

Page 39



seasonal; for example, the summer tends to see an increase in noise nuisance complaints 

as people have their windows open, as well as insects and pests. 

2.6 Licensing  

There are very few enforcement notices available to deal with licensing matters as a 

different process exists in most cases, whereby a licence can be reviewed, and a panel 

hearing is held. Enforcement action such as prosecution is usually the last resort in the 

most serious cases.  

The Licensing team are now seeing an increase in licensing activity including applications 

for new licences and renewals across most aspects of licensing. The inspection of animal 

establishments such as kennels, catteries, breeders, pet shops and riding establishments is 

now being prioritised although new legislation requiring qualifications restricts the officers 

that can do this currently.  

The team are continuing to support licensed businesses who have been impacted by 

Covid, and in particular are seeing an increase in variations of licences, where businesses 

are having to adapt and change their business model. 

The Panel of the Committee of the Licensing Authority met in April to consider an 

application for a premises licence for the sale of alcohol that the police had objected to.  

The Panel rejected the application and did not grant the licence. 

In June, the Licensing Panel considered an application for the grant of a Hackney 

Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence, as the applicant fell outside the scope of the existing 

policy in respect of previous driving offences. The Panel determined not to grant the 

licence. 

2.7 Food, Health & Safety 

During 2020 /21 the majority of the work has been Covid compliance and outbreak 

management related.  Any food safety matters have been resolved and there were two 

ongoing health and safety investigations, one of which was closed in Q2 2021, with one 

ongoing.   

Since the repeal of the Covid legislation, the Food Safety team have been concentrating on 

high-risk large and complex premises inspections, as well as night-time economy. They 

have also been working through an unusually high number of new food business 

registrations, likely because of people diversifying during and after the pandemic business 

restrictions.  Officers have been prioritising the inspection of new businesses in line with 

Food Standards Agency requirements.  The team also continue to use and promote the 

National Food Hygiene Rating Scheme as a means of securing and promoting good 

business practices.  

Due to the intensive inspection work that has resumed, the team are issuing a higher 

number of notices when required to ensure businesses are safe and compliant. Follow up 

and revisits are carried out to ensure businesses carry out the necessary actions. 

  

2.8 Covid Enforcement  

The Public Protection Service led on the regulatory enforcement of the various Covid 

regulations and statutory guidance in respect of business premises.  Most of these have 

Page 40



now been repealed, enabling the service to focus on its substantive statutory 

responsibilities, although the service does continue to provide business advice. 

The Public Protection Service continues to work with Lincolnshire County Council and the 

UK Health Security Agency (formerly PHE) and supports businesses on outbreak 

prevention and management. This work falls under public health obligations as well as 

health and safety.  

2.9 Communities  

2.9.1 As restrictions have eased and people are interacting in greater numbers, the level of 

enforcement action across community safety and anti-social behaviour has increased.  In 

20/21, the total number of advice or warning letters given was 1,170.  The combined total 

for Q1 & Q2 for 21/22 is 923 for 6 months of this year.  Total Financial Penalties in 20/21 

was 81.  The combined total for Q1 & Q2 21/22 is 66 showing an increase in action taken 

compared to 21/22. 

 The table below gives further detail of the type of action undertaken; 

  

2.9.2 The majority of the team’s work sits at the first stage of the enforcement process.  Informal 

warnings are issued and the behaviours usually cease with early intervention putting an 

end to the nuisance caused and reducing the need for formal enforcement action.  There 

are cases where early intervention is not successful, resulting in the next stages of the 

policy being followed and ultimately ending with formal notices such as Community 

Protection Notice or an injunction.   

2.9.3 In May, June and July 2021, unpaid FPN fines were pursued through the courts.  These 

case files included unpaid fines from 2019 and 2020 and in the majority of cases, the fine 

was increased to £220, costs of £85 and £34 victim surcharge were awarded.  Every fine is 

tracked from issue through to payment. 

2.9.4 Fly tipping continues to be a significant concern to South Holland residents as well as for 

communities across the country.  Incidents of fly-tipping are investigated where evidence 

supports a reasonable line of enquiry, however, if no evidence to identify the perpetrator is 

found, the only action that can be taken is removal of the waste. The table below details 

enforcement action taken to-date. 

 

Action 20/21 Q1 21/22 Q2 21/22 

Community Wardens – number of interactions 2,174 790 1,715 

Community Wardens -  number of verbal warnings 94 88 66 

Community Wardens – FPNS from patrols 75 40 21 

Abandoned Vehicle investigations 181 53 68 

Fixed Penalty Notices issued for Fly-tipping 6 3 0 

Fixed Penalty Notices issued for littering from a 
vehicle 

0 1 0 

Community Protection Warnings issued for;    

Creating Noise/ Nuisance from a vehicle 2 0 0 

Noise from visitors to property 1 2 0 

Early presentation of waste 1 0 0 

Failure to clear litter 5 0 0 

Community Protection Notices issued 4 4 0 

Page 41



  Fixed Penalty 
Notices(FPN)  

Prosecutions 

April 2018- March 2019 1 4 

April 2019- March 2020 3 4 

April 2020- March 2021 6 0 

April 2021- September 2021 3 0 

   

 There are currently 11 live investigations on going with persons being written to, visited or 

interviewed.  Where enforcement action has been possible, witness reports of the incident 

have been key and ongoing communication about the importance of reporting will continue.  

In August and September 2021, 27 reports of fly-tipping resulted in doorstep visits to 

approximately 60 households, giving advice on correct presentation of waste and details of 

the Council’s collection and bulky waste service.  Letters were also sent as a reminder of 

the discussion during the visit. 

2.9.5  Staffing challenges in Q2 has meant that progress with rollout of temporary cameras and 

the planned joint days of action with Lincolnshire Police have been delayed to Q3 and Q4.  

Additional team members have been trained to investigate fly-tips and collect evidence so 

that where action can be taken it will be.  An additional focus for Q3 is to develop proposals 

to increase the types of fly-tipping offences that can be actioned through Fixed Penalty 

Notice and to review the levels. 

2.9.6 Through both the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership and the Lincolnshire Environmental 

Crime Partnership, agencies across the county joined over 150 local authorities and 

professional bodies to call for tougher fines and sentences for fly-tippers.  This request has 

been made as part of a review of the Environmental Offences Definitive Guidelines (2014) 

and key recommendations were made through working in partnership with the national Fly 

Tipping Group.  These recommendations include; 

• Court fines to exceed the cost of Fixed Penalty Notice fines and to include costs incurred 

by the public purse and the police in bringing a fly-tipper to court 

• Costs related to the clean-up of fly-tipping on private land and restoration of that land to be 

included in fines paid by those who are prosecuted 

• When deciding the level of fine, fly-tipping should be looked at by the court as an offence 

first, and not at the person and their ability to pay first. Means testing should be used to 

ascertain what type of fine(s) to give, and never how much they should pay.  

• If a defendant cannot pay the fine in full, or in part, it is strongly recommended that 

community-based sentences are more widely used and available across all offence 

categories. 

• More use of suspended prison sentences which has been proven to be a strong deterrent 

to serial fly-tipping offenders in Buckinghamshire 

• Anyone convicted of a second fly-tipping offence is given a custodial sentence rather than 

another suspended sentence 

2.9.7 There has been an increase in reports of abandoned vehicles that need investigation to 

determine whether they have been abandoned or not.  Unlike fly-tipping, where the Council 

does not have a duty to investigate incidents on private land, there is an obligation to 

investigate any vehicle abandoned in the open air. There have been challenges tracing 

owners in recent months, particularly with foreign registered vehicles.  However, of the 68 

reports in Q2, 81% have been closed and 19% remain under investigation with attempts 

being made to contact the keeper and landowners.  There were three cases of landowners 

Page 42



reporting lorries abandoned on their land, however after investigations, these were 

determined as unlawful parking and advice given. 

2.10 Planning 

 The number of enforcement complaints received continues to increase year on year. In the 

vast majority of cases, breaches of planning control can be successfully resolved by 

negotiation with formal enforcement action only required in a small number of cases. 

Enforcement action is discretionary and should only be taken where it is expedient to do so.  

To the end of Q2 21/22 Planning have successfully prosecuted on two occasions.  

2.11 Housing 

The types of enforcement action that may be needed within Housing are broad and are 

used to tackle a wide variety of concerns.  This can include action taken against private 

sector landlords or district council tenants and can range from safety concern, non-payment 

of rent or unacceptable behaviours.  Continued upward trend in enforcement action as 

service returns to business as usual post pandemic.   

 

2.12 Building Control 

 Most breaches of The Building Regulations get resolved by discussions with customers 

about how to rectify any issues whilst on site.  The number has increased due to the 

number of inspections carried out in these periods. 

3.0 Enforcement Case Examples 

3.1 Below are some example cases where enforcement action has been taken during the 

period covered in this report. 

3.2 Food Safety 

Improvement Notices are used by Authorised Officers where there are concerns about food 

safety and they require the Food business Operator to take action to comply with 

legislation. A Hygiene Improvement Notice has been issued on a retail business who had 

been selling meat products prepared on an un-registered premise without any of the 

necessary food hygiene systems in place. Hygiene improvement notices were also served 

on a night-time takeaway that did not have adequate measures in place to handle and 

prepare high risk products.   

3.3 Environmental Protection 

Two notices have recently been served in relation to joint owners of a property under the 

Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949, for the destruction of mice and rats on their 

domestic premises.  

As part of a different investigation, a notice has been served as a formal Request for 

Information in relation to a noise complaint where the alleged source was not engaging with 

the Officer. 

3.4  Planning  

 One prosecution referred to in 2.10 concerned a developer not providing a footpath at the 

front of a new development in Crowland in breach of a planning condition. Despite 

protracted negotiations, a breach notice was issued and not complied with.  The developer 

was prosecuted for non-compliance with the notice, pleaded guilty, and was fined a total of 

Page 43



£804 in March 2021.  This prompted the developed to carry out the required works in June 

2021 to avoid further prosecution proceedings being instigated, and the matter has now 

been fully resolved.  

3.5 Housing 

The types of action that the data in sections 2.2 – 2.4 cover actions including; Emergency 

Prohibition Notices, upheld First Tier Property Tribunal appeals, Electrical installation 

compliance notices, Community Protection Warnings to Injunctions.  In 2020, a landlord 

was handed a £1,500 fine after hazards identified as posing a potential danger to life were 

identified by the Housing team.  These were identified during an inspection of the property 

following complaints received from the tenants.  Remedial action was not taken during the 

required time frame, a formal improvement notice was served and the civil penalty was 

imposed for failure to comply with the improvement notice. 

In Q4 of 20/21 an injunction was served after two people were found to have been 

cuckooing vulnerable tenants in the District, coercing them to be allowed into their property 

and using violent, abusive and intimidating behaviour to take advantage of them.  This 

injunction was secured through joint working with Lincolnshire Police and it was monitored 

for compliance.   This injunction was breached by one of the individuals who was witnessed 

by Lincolnshire Police and a judge at Lincoln County Court awarded a 14-day prison 

sentence suspended for six months and £850 costs to be paid.  

3.6 Communities 

Through Q1 and Q2, the majority of Community Protection Warnings (CPW) and 

Community Protection Notices (CPN) have related to nuisance behaviour and disturbances 

by individuals, or by visitors to their properties.  Where initial warning letters have not 

stopped the behaviours, or if the behaviour was having a significant impact on the victims a 

formal CPW may be issued.  If this is not complied with, a CPN may be served and any 

breaches could lead to a Fixed Penalty Notice or court action.  Officers issued a CPW to an 

individual in Donington whose nuisance behaviour of shouting, swearing and verbal abuse 

was causing considerable concern to the community.  In Sutton Bridge, a CPN was issued 

to an individual who caused noise or disturbance to his neighbours and allowed visitors to 

his property.  A benefit to Community Protection Notice is that as well as outlining 

behaviours that must cease, there is also the ability to add positive requirements.  In one 

example, this included keeping appointments with a support worker who could help the 

individual address their alcohol usage, which exacerbated their anti-social behaviour. 

Shuttle mediation has been trialled in Q2 to help resolve neighbour disputes.  The interim 

Community Safety & Enforcement Manager (a trained mediator) worked with the police 

officer within South Holland’s Operational Partnership Team on 4 neighbour dispute cases.  

Shuttle mediation is a process where parties do not come together in the early stages but 

agree to, and embark upon a series of shuttle mediation sessions between the two parties.  

Three out of the four cases have successfully been concluded using this method reducing 

the number of calls to Lincolnshire Police and the Council. 

 

4.0      OPTIONS 

 

4.1 Note the contents of this report and in future, provide the data within this report on a 

quarterly basis to members within the quarterly performance report (recommended). 

 

Page 44



4.2 Note the contents of the report and provide members with a further update report in six 

months’ time. 

  

 

5.0      REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

5.1 It is recommended that the data presented within this report is provided on a quarterly basis 

to members.   

 

6.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

6.1       A quarterly update would allow for increased communication and timely updates.   

 

6.2      The report would continue to provide an overview of the Council’s enforcement activities. 

 

6.3 The report would enable members to ensure that enforcement action is being taken 

appropriately and that resident and community concerns are being addressed. 

 

 

7.0  IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 

Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 

Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 

Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 

one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

7.1     Constitutional & Legal 

 

7.1.1 There are many pieces of legislation that span across Planning, Building Control, Housing, 

Environmental, Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Disorder and Public Protection functions. 

The most appropriate tool or power will be used for each case to resolve the issue. 

 

7.2 Corporate Priorities 

7.2.1 Enforcement supports the following Council priorities: 

• Your Home; 

• Your Place; 

• Your Health and Wellbeing; 

• Your Opportunity; and Our Council. 
 
7.3 Crime and Disorder 
 
7.3.1 There are no direct implications from this report. However, taking appropriate enforcement 

action is a key part of community safety and addressing crime and disorder concerns. 
 
7.4  Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
7.4.1  There are no direct implications from this report. It should be noted that surveillance 

techniques and investigations need to consider Article 8 of the Human Rights Act which 

Page 45



covers right to privacy. Judicial and quasi-judicial action is also subject to Article 6 – right to 
a fair trial. 
 

7.5  Financial 
 
7.5.1  There are no direct implications from this report. However, some enforcement action can 

result in financial penalties alongside proportionate legal costs. 
 
7.6  Reputation 
 
7.6.1  It is important that the council demonstrates its commitment to taking appropriate and 

proportionate enforcement action and that it effectively deals with local concerns. 
 
7.7  Risk Management 
 
7.7.1  Enforcement action, particularly when it reaches court proceedings, is open to challenge. 

It is important that there is robust evidence to take enforcement action beyond an initial 
warning stage. There needs to be confidence in a case if it leads to court. Any case with 
insufficient evidence, which fails at court, has significant cost implications for local 
authorities and officers have a duty to use public money appropriately. Enforcement 
action should be in the best interest of the public and be proportional, consistent, 
transparent and targeted. 

 
8.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
8.1 Services are provided for all those living, working or visiting the district. 
 
9.0 ACRONYMS 

 
9.1  FPN Fixed Penalty Notice 

9.2 CPW Community Protection Warning 

9.3 CPN Community Protection Notice 

9.4 GAP Guardian and Parent letter 

 

Background papers:-  

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Emily Holmes, Communities Manager 

Telephone Number 01775 764469 

Email: eholmes@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: N  

Exempt Decision: N  

 

 

 

Page 46



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Assistant Director – Governance and Monitoring Officer 

  

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Tuesday, 9 November 2021  

 

Author: Andrea Tait Democratic Services Officer 

 

Subject Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme 

 

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel 

 

Recommendation 
 
That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion. 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 

inclusion on its Work Programme.   
 
1.2 Issues 

 
1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
 consideration. These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
 referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  The appendix will be updated as new 
 items are identified. 
 
1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
 shows: 
 

• The name of the task group 

• What it wants to achieve 

• Key dates 

• Membership of the task group 

• When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel 
 
1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 

standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide 
the opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 
 
2.2 To do nothing. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the 

Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date. 
 

Page 47

Agenda Item 13



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide 

councillors with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items 
and proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the 
appendices. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
 In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of 
 the decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  
 Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
 Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk  Management; 
 Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
 Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications  
 under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 
 
5.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the 

suitability of the subject, taking into account considerations such as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the 
topic links to the Council’s key aims and priorities.  

 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 This report has no implications however, as individual items are progressed through the 

Work Programme, their impact on wards and communities will be assessed. 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 None. 

 

Background papers:- None  

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Andrea Tait Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone Number  

Email: atait@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: No  

 

Exempt Decision: No  

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service  

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Work Programme Calendar 2021/22 

Appendix B Task Group Work Programme 2021/22 

 

Page 48



 APPENDIX A 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 

ITEMS 2021/22 
 
 

 
Date of 
Meeting 

 
Agenda items 

 

9 November 
2021 

• Q2 2022/23 Performance Report 

• Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group – update on the 
current status of recommendations, and an update on all the 
issues raised by the original task group (as requested by 
PMP November 2020).  Decision then to be taken on 
whether new Task Group necessary.  

• Six-monthly update report on Refuse Collection from Private 
Drives (first reported 8/7/20)  

• Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – 
update on progress of recommendations (last updates 
received 18 June 2019, 11 September 2019 and 10 
November 2020). Include information requested at November 
2020 meeting. 

• Corporate Enforcement – update report on how the Authority 
is addressing the various types of enforcement, following the 
Authority-wide reorganisation (last update 6/2/18, 31/7/18, 
30/1/19, 12/11/19 & 27/1/21). Six-monthly 

5 January 2022 
Joint PMP/PDP 

• Budget Scrutiny 

26 January 
2022 

• Q3 2022/23 Performance Report 

• Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 (revised following CV19) – 
considered at Council 29/7/20 – Diarise to monitor 
achievement against the 2 schedules considered – April-July 
2021 

• Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety 
and how it is being delivered through the various tiers of 
Groups and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly 
formed Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six 
months by the Portfolio Holder for Community Development. 
Last discussed at meetings on 18/6/19, 11/9/19, a COVID-
relevant update on 8/7/20, and 27/1/21. 

16 March 2022 • Economic Development and Inward Investment update – 
(first update received 11 September 2019, updated reports to 
be on a six-monthly basis, to include an executive summary 
alongside the main report). COVID-relevant update received 
8/7/20, and further update received on 27/1/21 and 08/09/21. 

• Marketing/Renovation of Industrial units – six monthly update  
requested at meeting held 29/1/20 – last updates received 
9/9/20 and 08/09/21) 

• Update report on progress of the Northgate System in 
Housing – update provided 19/10/21. Six monthly update 
requested (Jason King) 

Items yet to be 
allocated. 

• Information report on future commercialisation projects 
(Richard Hodgson/Christine Marshall – last update 13 
November 2018). 

Page 49



• Commercialisation (2) – how effectively is the Authority 
managing commercial opportunities?  Second report, a 
general report around commercialisation. 

• What areas of risk exist within Public Services for cost 
shunting, and how can this be avoided?  

 
 
For future consideration 
 

• Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have 
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up 
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by 
Cabinet (date to be confirmed). 

• Commercialisation – As potential projects arise, PMP to consider scrutiny 
 

**************** 
To be considered annually: 
 

1) The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final 
Report to Council on 21 January 2015.  Its first recommendation was: 

 
That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has 
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the 
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to 
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites  the Performance 
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis 
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with 
Charity Commission Guidance. 
 
A meeting took place on 24 January 2019. Suggest next meeting January 2021 
 

2) Review of Implemented Planning Decisions – Tour undertaken 5 
September 2019, next tour was to be undertaken in September 2020  
but cancelled as a result of ongoing Covid situation – to be re-visited 
early 2022 

Page 50



APPENDIX B 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022 
 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed date of 
report to Panel 

South Holland Centre 
Task Group 

To review the historic operation of the SHC, 
examine the proposals, consider other 
activities, uses and operation that may be 
possible to help inform the task group in 
making recommendations to enable the Centre 
to serve the public and ensure a viable future. 
 

8 
September 
2021 

28 
September20
21 

B Alcock 
(Chair) 
F Biggadike 
P Redgate 
S Walsh 
D Wilkinson 
A Woolf 
A Newton 
(Co-Optee) 

TBC 
To be presented 
to a Joint 
PMP/PDP 
meeting, prior to 
Cabinet. 

Public Open Spaces Task 
Group 

To be confirmed at first meeting. 12 
November 
2019 

TBC B Alcock 
J R Astill 
A C Beal 
CJTH Brewis 
PA Redgate 

TBC 

Public Toilets Task Group To review public toilets in the district, looking at 
location, cleaning regimes, usage, reasons for 
closure and running costs. 
To use information gathered to ensure value 
for money, good service, and that the right 
money was spent in the right place. 

6 February 
2018 

23 April 2018 J R Astill 
CJTH Brewis 
T A Carter 
GK Dark 
(Chairman) 
PC Foyster 

30 January 2019 
To Cabinet 12 
Feb 2019  
Response from 
Cabinet to PMP 
20 Mar 2019. 
Update on 
progress PMP 

P
age 51



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed date of 
report to Panel 

11/9/19 & 29/1/20. 

Swimming Pool and 
Leisure Centre Contract 
Task Group 

To review the Spalding swimming pool and 
leisure centre, specifically: 

• To consider performance, in relation to the 
contract, by the Authority and the 
contractor, particularly with reference to 
building maintenance and cleanliness, 
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment 
in the facilities; 

• To look at the Council’s performance in 
monitoring the leisure facilities; and 

• To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny, 
to inform future contracts and contract 
monitoring. 

1 December 
2015 

21 January 
2016 

J R Astill 
T A Carter 
G K Dark 
(Chairman) 
J L King 
A M Newton 

30 August 2016 
To Cabinet 8 
November 2016 
 
Response and 
update on 
progress PMP 
4/2/17, 16/5/17, 
7/11/17, 13/11/18, 
8/06/19 & 11/9/19. 
Next update was 
due 10/11/20 

Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group 

Recommendation of the original Task Group to 
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single 
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of 
ensuring that the Council remained compliant 
with Charity Commission Guidance. 

15 June 
2016 

Date to be 
confirmed. 

GR Aley 
JR Astill 
GK Dark 
PC Foyster 
AM Newton 

Meeting took 
place on 24 
January 2019. 
 
Suggest Jan 21 

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group 

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward. 
 
Terms of Reference – To examine the 

6 November 
2012  

21 November 
2012  

B Alcock 
M Howard 
R M Rudkin 
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman) 
 

Interim report to 
PMP 29 January 
2013  
Interim report to 
Cabinet 19 
February 2013. 

P
age 52



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed date of 
report to Panel 

effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision. 
 
Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the 
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 
on the position regarding CCTV.  Performance 
information will be available on the new system 
in the future, once it becomes operational.  
The Task Group will remain in operation to 
scrutinise performance and will start to do 
this once the information becomes 
available. 

 
   

Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 26 March 
2013 
Updates to PMP: 
8 April 2014, and 
six-monthly 
thereafter.  

The effectiveness of 
management companies 
set up to undertake 
maintenance on 
residential estates 
throughout the district 
past, present and for the 
future. 

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014 

To be 
confirmed 

To be 
confirmed 

To be confirmed 

 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Key Decision Plan
	8 Q2 Performance Report 21/22
	Appendix 1 for Q2 21/22 Performance Overview

	12 Corporate Enforcement Update
	13 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


